ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 26, 2017
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss-Tonki ns, Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Vice Chair
Representative Chris Tuck

Representati ve Adam Wol

Representative Chris Birch

Represent ati ve DeLena Johnson

Representative Gary Knopp

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Andy Josephson (alternate)
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 16

“"An Act relating to training regarding disabilities for police
officers, probation officers, parole officers, correctiona
officers, and village public safety officers; relating to
gui delines for drivers when encountering or being stopped by a
peace officer; relating to driver's license exam nations; and
relating to a voluntary disability designation on a state
identification card and a driver's |license."

- MOVED HB 16 QUT OF COW TTEE
OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 16

SHORT TITLE: DRIV. LI CENSE REQ DI SABI LI TY: | D &TRAI NI NG
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) THOVPSON

01/ 18/ 17 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/17
01/18/17 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (H STA, FIN

01/ 24/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
01/ 24/ 17 (H Heard & Held

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 26, 2017



01/ 24/ 17 (H) M NUTE( STA)
01/ 26/ 17 (H) STA AT 3:00 PM GRUENBERG 120

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE STEVE THOMPSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on HB 16, as prinme
sponsor.

SHELDON FI SHER, Commi ssi oner

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Co- provided an overview of the Departnent
of Admi nistration (DOA).

KEVI N BROOKS, Director

Di vision of Shared Services (DSS)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Co- provided an overview of the Departnent
of Admi nistration (DOA).

EMLY RICCl, Chief Health Policy Adm nistrator

Di vision of Retirenment and Benefits (DRB)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Co- provided an overview of the Departnent
of Admi nistration (DOA).

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:04:17 PM

CHAIR JONATHAN KREISS-TOWKINS called the House State Affairs
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3: 04 p. m
Representatives LeDoux, Tuck, Wol, Birch, Knopp, and Kreiss-
Tonkins were present at the call to order. Representati ve
Johnson arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 16-DRIV. LI CENSE REQ DI SABI LI TY: I D &TRAI NI NG

3:05:12 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOMKI NS announced that the first order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 16, "An Act relating to training

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 26, 2017



regarding disabilities for police officers, probation officers,
parole officers, correctional officers, and village public
safety officers; relating to guidelines for drivers when
encountering or being stopped by a peace officer; relating to
driver's license examnations; and relating to a voluntary
disability designation on a state identification card and a
driver's license."

3:06: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON, referring back to Representative Knopp's
comment at the House State Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting of
1/ 24/ 17, asked if HB 16 should be anended to change the | anguage
of AS 18. 65. 670, subsection (c), to reflect t hat t he
Comm ssi oner of Departnment of Public Safety (DPS) is nmandated to
adopt regulations regarding training for village public safety
of ficers (VPSO) .

3:07:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STEVE THOWPSON, Al aska State Legislature, as
prime sponsor of HB 16, responded that he was satisfied that the
Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC) has already nandated the
training in its regulations.

3:08: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to report HB 16 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 16 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmmtt ee.

3:08: 26 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from3:08 p.m to 3:21 p. m

OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON

3:21:15 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWI NS announced that the final order of business
was the overview fromthe Departnment of Adm nistration.

3:21: 34 PM

SHELDON FI SHER, Comm ssi oner, Departnment of Admi nistration
(DAA), provided an overview of the Departnment of Adm nistration

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 26, 2017



(DOA) using a PowerPoint presentation, titled "Departnent of
Admi ni stration Overview" He referred to Slide 2, titled
"Organi zation," and stated that DOA is responsible for: t he
state's information technology (IT) services under Enterprise
Technol ogy Services (ETS); accounting and payroll systens under
the Division of Finance (DOF); purchasing, leasing, and nmail
services under the Division of GCeneral Services (DGS); human
resources and |abor contracts under the Division of Personnel
and Labor Relations (DPLR); benefits for active and retired
enpl oyees under the Division of Retirenment and Benefits (DRB);
and property insurance and workers conpensation under the
Division of R sk Mnagenent (DRM. He pointed out that the
green colored boxes on the chart indicate services provided to
ot her departnents.

MR. FISHER said that external public services are provided
through the Division of Mdtor Vehicles (DW), the Ofice of
Publ i ¢ Advocacy (OPA), and the Public Defender Agency (PDA). He
added that DOA facilitates and admi nisters a nunber of boards
and comm ssi ons.

MR. FISHER stated that his primary task is to build and enable a
hi gh-functioni ng organi zation. He noted the new directors in
DOA: Ajay Desai of DRB; Kevin Brooks of the Division of Shared
Services (DSS); and Marla Thonpson of DW. He also nentioned
the new Chief Information O ficer, Bill Vajda.

3:25:39 PM

MR. FISHER referred to Slide 3, titled "DOS Budget - UG " and
stated that DOA has about $90 million in general funds (GF), $30
mllion [designated general funds] (DGF), and about $69 nillion
[ undesi gnated general funds] (UGF). He said that the UG is
dom nated by OPA and PDA. He nentioned that OPA participates in
| egal defense when the public defender has a conflict. It also
manages the state's public wards - adults who cannot take care
of themselves - through public guardians.

3:27:33 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how many peopl e staff OPA.
MR. FI SHER responded OPA has 128 enpl oyees.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if all or nost of the enployees are
i nvolved with crimnal defense.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 26, 2017



MR. FISHER answered no, out of the 128 enployees, about 32
| awyers provide crimnal or appellant defense functions. The
bal ance of enployees conprises public guardians, guardians ad
litem (for children), and those involved with Child in Need of
Aid (CINA) cases.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX opined that when she first started
practicing law in Al aska, the state did not have a very "robust"
OPA, and nost guardian cases were "farned out" to private
counsel . She asked if anyone has conpared the cost of using
private counsel versus maintaining an OPA.

MR. FISHER conceded that sone of the work is still through
contract, but DOA has determned that for the crimnal defense
work, it is cheaper to hire staff |awers.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the cost analysis included the
cost of benefits, as well.

MR, FISHER said it did. He went on to say OPA is "stretched"
considerably, citing that Al aska has one of the highest ward to
guardian ratios in the country. He said, on average, a guardi an
can spend |less than two hours a nonth with a ward but still nust
take care of all of his/her needs. He added that DOA has tried
to mnimze cuts to the OPA budget.

3:31:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the primary responsibility of DOA
to a ward [of the state] was managi ng hi s/ her finances.

MR. FISHER responded that it could be nanaging finances,
ensuring adequate housing, or guaranteeing basic needs are net.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if people pay for the guardi anships
when they have the neans.

MR. FI SHER answered that there is a fee for this service, which
doesn't cover all of the cost, but that OPA is designed to neet
the needs of those people who don't have the neans to care for
t hensel ves.

3:32: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked if the 128 enployees in OPA are all or
nostly all attorneys.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 26, 2017



MR. FISHER responded OPA has 32 practicing |awers, and the
ot her enpl oyees are social workers or trained guardi ans.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked if the Ofice of Children's Services
(OCS) duplicates any of OPA' s functions.

MR. FISHER answered that he does not know if OCS also has
guardians ad litem He opined that the primary guardian ad
[item function is through DOA, but conceded OCS may have a role,
as wel | .

3:33:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH asked if the public defender represents
t hose bei ng prosecuted by the district attorney.

MR. FI SHER responded yes, the public defender provides crimna
defense for indigent defendants.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked how the budgets are determ ned for
prosecution [within the Departnent of Law (DOL)] and defense
[within DOA]. He asked, "How do you decide who gets a bigger
budget ?"

MR.  FISHER answered that although the budgets have evolved
historically, DOA tries to nanage a budget that allows it to
maintain a caseload that satisfies both <constitutional and
et hical requirenents. He added that the budgets are not
necessarily conparabl e, for exanple, DOL has access to
investigators wthin the police departnent or Alaska State
Troopers (AST), whereas DOA nust pay for investigators wthin
its budget. He added that the budgets of both departnents have
been cut.

3:35:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked about the process of guardianship -
if the need for guardianship is determned through the court
system and then the guardian is provided by DOA.

VR. FISHER stated hi s under st andi ng t hat determ ni ng
guardi anship is only done through the court system

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked the extent of services provided by
DOA to the individual needi ng guardi anship.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 26, 2017



MR. FISHER said that typically the individual needing a guardi an

has sonme resources. He explained that the guardi anship budget
does not include rent noney. It includes reinbursenent of a
guardian who helps the individual admnister his/her own
resources, because that individual 1is incapable of managing

hi s/her own |ife.
3:37:38 PM

MR. FISHER continued with Slide 3 and said that $16 mllion of
DGF pays DW' s operating costs and comes out of DW fees. He
went on to say that Alaska O and Gas Conservation Conmm ssion
(ACGCC) receives about $7.5 nmillion in fees from the [oil and
gas] industry. These two anobunts neke up the bul k of DGF. He
cited the other UG- funded functions shown on Slide 3: t he
State of Al aska Tel ecommuni cations System (SATS) and Al aska Land
Mobil e Radio System (ALMR) - both used by first responders for
energency communications - and the accounting function for the
State of Al aska. Most of DOA's budget, which is in excess of
$300 nmillion, comes from fees other agencies pay for DQOA
servi ces.

3:40: 00 PM

MR. FISHER referred to Slide 4, titled "Departnent Priorities,”
and asserted that DOA is focused on trying to inprove the way
services are delivered both within the departnent and throughout
the state. He explained that DSS consolidates adm nistrative
functions that every departnent needs and historically have been
performed within each departnent, such as accounting, travel,
and facilities. He asserted that consolidation of functions
will save noney. He said that |IT services, which are too
specialized to conbine wunder DSS, can be streamined and
i nproved using the "shared services" principles.

MR. FISHER said DOA recognized a need to nodernize the DRB
systens and processes, which date back to the '90s, and hired
Ajay Desai as the director of DBRto |ead that effort.

MR. FISHER said health care reformis a big issue both for the

State of Alaska and for the state as a whole. DOA is
responsible for adm nistering both the active enployee plan and
the retiree plan, at a cost of over $600 mllion.

3:42: 35 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 26, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if the nedical plans del egated by the
various unions are periodically audited to find out the extent
of the accumul ated asset base and expenditure.

MR.  FI SHER responded yes. He replied that as bargaining
agreenents are negotiated, DOA now insists on receiving detailed
i nformati on about the nedical plans for DOA actuary review. He
mentioned that during the last round of negotiations with the
Al aska State Enployees Association (ASEA), DOA held ASEA s
contribution flat because the ASEA Health Trust had accunul at ed

a "nmeani ngful" reserve. He said that, over tine, "they'|ll need
to spend down sone of those reserves in order to be able to
continue to provide the nedical care.” He added that nedica

costs are growng substantially faster than [the rate of]
inflation, so even though inflation has been low in Al aska and
the rest of the U S., nedical costs are growi ng between 7 and 9

percent annually. He said, "Keeping a plan flat in a grow ng
cost environment wll start to normalize that, and we'll
continue to, over tinme, get them to a place where | think we

believe that the reserves are appropriate.”

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked to receive a summary of the nedica
plan information for all the negotiated agreenents and the
account bal ances.

3:45: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asserted that nedical costs in Al aska seem
to be so nmuch higher than in the Lower 48. She asked what DOA
is doing to encourage Alaskans to go south for non-energency
oper ati ons.

MR. FI SHER responded that DOA has a nedical travel benefit but

added, "It's not one that we are particularly proud of" and it
is "fairly clunky." M. Fisher speculated that health plan
menbers are not taking the opportunity to |leave Alaska to
receive non-energency care as nuch as possible. He said he

expects DOA to initiate a nmuch nore robust nedical travel
benefit that is easier to use. He offered his belief that the
new benefit would offer a net saving for the state, due to |ess
expensi ve procedures out of state.

3:46: 54 PM

CHAIR KREISS-TOWI NS asked what percentage of non-energency
procedures are currently conducted out of state through the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 26, 2017



nedi cal travel benefit, and what percentage DOA anticipates with
the i mproved nedical travel benefit.

MR. FISHER said that DOA is presently gathering data in order to
estimate the value of this new benefit and wll provide that
i nformati on when avail abl e.

3:48: 01 PM

MR. FISHER reported that DOA | eases about $50 nmillion of space
and is working to optim ze use of the space and negotiate better
pri ci ng.

3:48: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if the Health Care Authority (HCA)
feasibility study is being done in house or through a contract.

MR. FISHER responded that DOA issued a request for proposa
(RFP) and is working with a consultant. He anticipates the
final product to be a blend of in-house and contract work.

3:49:42 PM

KEVIN BROOKS, Director, Division of Shared Services (DSS),
Department of Administration (DOA), continued the Departnent of
Adm nistration (DOA) overview with Slide 6 of the PowerPoint
presentation, titled "Shared Services Overview." He said that
currently there are 14 state departnents, each wth an
Adm ni strative Servi ces Di vi si on perform ng vari ous
adm ni strative functions throughout the departnent. He offered
that under a "shared services" nodel, his office's mssion is:
to identify and centralize the common functions throughout
[state] governnent; to inplenent redesign and inprovenent of the
processes; and wultimately, to achieve efficiency and cost-
savings by performng necessary functions of governnment wth
fewer people. He asserted that the new nodel allows departnents
to focus on their core mssions, while DOA perfornms the
"backroont business functions.

3:51: 54 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed a concern about changes in
personnel workl oads that reduce positions to less than fulltine

and asked how that would be handled by DSS. She added she
assunmes each position has been "costed out."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 26, 2017



MR. BROCKS replied that there are already "fragnmented positions”

within the departnents. He relayed that DSS wll staff
accordingly to handle the volune of work and bill departnents by
the nunmber of transactions processed. He nentioned that the

work is performed by accounting technicians, and added that the
accounting technician position is relatively low in the state
structure and experiences a fair anount of turnover.

3:55: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked if transferring positions to DOA from
ot her departnents represents any downsi zing or "real savings."

MR. BROOKS agreed that "it really does [the state] no good to
just reshuffle the chairs.” He said a 10 percent reduction was
| evied on every departnment's budget. From the 90 percent of the
budget retained, the departnents will pay DSS contractually for
services instead of paying enployees. He said that DSS s goa
is an additional 20 percent reduction and possibly higher as
processes are refined. He said DSS is "mapping the process,

removing steps to the process, and ... creating one [process]"”
for each departnment to adopt. He offered his belief that one
process, instead of 14 processes, wll result in efficiencies

and savi ngs.
3:57: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK cited the savings, listed on Slide 6, of 10
percent in fiscal year 2018, 30 percent in FY 19, and 50 percent
| ong-term and asked how M. Brooks arrived at those forecasts.

MR. BROOKS said that DSS contracted with Everett Ross, who
facilitated a simlar transition in Onio. He said that DSS is
attenpting to nodel Chio's efforts and utilize industry
benchmarks for processing transactions. He attested that the
percentages are reflective of simlar efforts in other
jurisdictions.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK recommended that DSS be aware of unintended
consequences of centralization of functions. He cited an
exanple in which centralization caused nore del ays and probl ens,
and cautioned against a simlar result if DSS does not
understand the 14 departnents well enough. He urged DSS to
ensure actual cost savings and avoid creating inefficiencies.

MR. BROOKS said that before transitioning a department, DSS is
spending considerable tine with the departnment to wunderstand

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- January 26, 2017



their "book of business.” He said DSS will focus on identifying
benchmar ks, costs, tinelines, and outconmes, in order to avoid
t he uni nt ended consequences Representative Tuck cited.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK added that he supports the concept described
by M. Brooks but cautions agai nst unintended consequences.

4:01: 05 PM

REPRESENTATIVE BIRCH referred to a previous coment about the
merits of traveling Qutside for nore conpetitively priced
nmedi cal servi ces. He asked if the consolidation effort would
afford DSS the opportunity to find conpetitive private sector
resources or opportunities.

MR. BROOKS said DSS's primary focus is using state enployees to
perform admnistrative functions instead of out-sourcing or
privati zi ng. He said there are union rules to follow but added
there are certain functions that |end thenselves to contractua
arrangenents. He asserted that DSS would take a balanced
approach - using state enpl oyees when appropriate and a private
sector solution when that is a better fit.

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH cited the notor vehicle operation of DW as
a good exanpl e of a bal anced operation with good "back up."

4:03: 01 PM

MR. BROOKS referred to Slide 7, titled "SSOA Roadmap - Pilots
and initial waves are definitive," and stated that DSS is taking

a neasured approach in its efforts. He said DSS's first
initiative was with "travel and expense," which began as a pil ot
project in DOA. He went on to say that the initiatives will be

i npl emented in waves - three or four departnents at a tinme. The
timeline on Slide 7 shows the six-nonth plan for inplenentation
of the travel and expense roll-out. He pointed out that the
Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel oprment ( DLVD) and
Department of Revenue (DOR) are part of the Travel & Expense
Wave 1 effort. He described the process: selecting a
departnment; identifying the best practices; inproving the
process; stabilizing the process; then noving on to three or
four additional departnents. He stated his belief that in the
next five or six nmonths, all departnents will have transitioned
in regard to travel and expense. He asserted that DSS w || use
a simlar phased approach for the other initiatives.

4:04: 50 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 26, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked, "What sort of best practices are
you | ooki ng for?

VR. BROOKS said each departnent has its own operating
pr ocedur es. He suggested that developing one standard desk
manual would elimnate 14 separate ones. He referred to the
Integrated Resource Information System (IR'S), which handles
financials and human resources for the state, and said IR S has
changed how all state departnments are functioning. He said he
supports fully utilizing the IR'S system and automating
processes to the extent possible. He maintained that there are
a nyriad of processes and functions that |end thenselves to
efficiencies and streanl i ning.

4:06: 20 PM

CHAI R KREI SS-TOWI NS asked for the nanme of the contractor who
overhauled IRIS for the State of Al aska.

MR. FISHER explained that IRIS is an accounting system that
replaced the state's out-of-date system The contractor,
Consultants to Governnent and Industry Technol ogies and
Solutions Inc. (CA), offered a product that is specifically
designed to support state governnent. He said that IRIS was
delivered on time and on budget, and CGE assisted wth
i npl enent ati on. He said DOA |aunched the financial nodule of
the new system 18 nonths ago and the human resources nodule a
week and a half ago. He reported that the systemis performng
reasonably well and has nmet DOA's expectations.

4:08: 18 PM

MR. BROOKS referred to the flowhart on Slide 8, titled "As-Is
Process Mapping,” which illustrates the current process for
travel, from the initial travel order to the final check and
reconciliation. He said the DSS project nmanager interviews
staff to map the existing process and to discuss opportunities
for efficiencies and inprovenents. M. Brooks then identified
the flowhart on Slide 9, titled "To-Be Process Mpping," as the
new standard with which departnents are trained. He nentioned
that DSS will repeat this procedure wth "accounts payable" in

February or early March.

4:10: 06 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 26, 2017



MR. FI SHER referenced Slide 10, titled "Process |nprovenent: DW
- Average Wait Tinme," to explain process inprovenent using the
DW as an exanple. He asserted that the inprovenent in DW wait
times was driven by process inprovenent, and no capital project
or increase in operating expense was involved. He added DSS has
used its process inprovenent expertise to do process i nprovenent
projects in the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) and the
Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF), wth
|l easing, with facilities, and with a nunber of other efforts.

4:12:19 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TUCK offered he is very inpressed with DW s

ability to "get people in and out." He asked how nuch of the
reduced wait times were due to reduced vol une of busi ness.

MR FISHER <cited the inprovenent in average wait tines,
conmparing August 2015 with August 2016 - 44 mnmnutes and 16
m nutes, respectively. He said DW processed about 1,000 nore

transactions in August 2016 than in August 2015; however, the
overall annual volume of transactions was down slightly in 2016.
He nmai ntai ned, however, that nost of the savings were driven by
efficiencies in delivery of service and not reduction in usage.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if the additional 1,000 transactions
i n August 2016 included in-person transactions.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked if there was a budget reduction for
DWV.

MR. FI SHER responded that there was no budget reduction, in part
because it is funded by DG-. He added, "That's a decision that
we kind of need to make together. Do we want to save noney or
continue to provide the degree of service, or sonme conbination?"

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL commented that in a recent visit to a DW
office he was astonished at how few people there were in the
office. He offered possible reasons: people aren't registering
cars or getting driver |icenses; population fluctuation; nore
information and transactions online. He suggested that a few
nore mnutes of wait tine may be just as acceptable and possibly
staff could be reduced.

MR. FISHER reiterated that the nost significant change is not
due to reduced volunme, but to process tine. He nentioned that
t he budget for DW declined by about $250,000 from FY 17 to FY
18. He offered that DW is trying to put nore [information and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- January 26, 2017



transactions] online. He said he anticipates that soneday the
DW wll provide services with self-serve kiosks simlar to
airports, and that contact with a DW agent would just be for
unusual circunstances.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if there wll be a nore detailed
presentation for each division |ater.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS r esponded yes.
4:18: 01 PM

MR. FISHER referred to Slide 12, titled "Recomrendations,” and
expl ained that the new chief information officer (CO is tasked
with inproving the efficiency of |IT service delivery. He said
that currently there are 14 separate | T departnents researching
and selecting the best conputers, servers, configuration, and
storage technol ogy. He said DOA recognized the opportunity to

be nore efficient in those efforts. He added that these
services are "commodity" services - services all departnents
need but are not specialized for a particular departnent. He
differentiated commodity services from "line of Dbusiness”
services, of which IRIS is an exanple - a single product used
for the entire state. He stated that for every conmodity
service DOA delivers, it makes a "buy versus bill" decision.
The question is asked: can sonething be done better and nore

efficiently internally or by procurement? He noted that DOA has
obligations to do a feasibility study under DOA contracts and
will fulfill those commitnents wunder the DOA bargaining
agr eenent s.

4:20:46 PM

MR. FISHER next referred to Slide 13, titled "Organizational
Vi sion." He stated that the departnment technology officers
(DTO currently report to either the admnistrative services
director (ASD) or the conm ssioner of their various departnents.
He said that in the future, they would report to the CIO "on a

solid line basis." He explained that this neans the DIGs woul d
be part of the centralized IT organization and receive their
performance reviews from the C O but would still support the
needs of their various departnents in a "dotted I|ine"

rel ati onship.

4:23: 05 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 26, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked for confirnmation that the Cl O oversees
ETS and, under the new structure, the DTO in DOA and the DTGCs
fromthe other departnents.

MR. FI SHER decl ared that the organization chart on Slide 13 is
official as of today, and DOA has never had a Cl O before today.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked for clarification that the new C O
will start out by overseeing ETS, and then eventually the DTGCs.

MR. FI SHER answered yes, it will happen quickly.
4:24.:53 PM

MR. FISHER referred to the dotted circle around the director of
the Ofice of Mnagenent & Budget (OvB), DOA, and the C O on
the organization chart, and explained that it represented the
strategic governance function. He pointed out [Internal
Verification & Validation] (IV&) Function shown wunder the
director of OMB in the chart and identified it as a regular
audit function to ensure that DOA is inproving the |level of
service that it is delivering to the other departnents. He
announced DOA's slogan is "better, faster, cheaper.™ DOA will
be benchmarking the level of service «currently delivered,
establishing service level agreenments with the departnents, and
auditing for actual inprovenents. He stated that the audit wll
be a function of OVB, outside of DOA

4:26:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRENN referred to Slide 7 and asked if, after
Wave 4, DOA would go back to the Wave 1 departnents to re-
eval uate and make i nprovenents.

MR. FISHER clainmed that at each step of the way, DOA will be
| earning and neking corrections and inprovenents. He said that
OvB, through the 1V&/ function, wll periodically measure the
ef fectiveness of the work, in cost, time, and quality.

4:27:56 PM

EMLY R CCl, Chief Health Policy Admnistrator, D vision of
Retirement and Benefits (DRB), Departnment of Admnistration
(D), continued the Departnent of Admi nistration (DOA) overview
with Slide 15, titled "Cost of State Enployee Health Care." She
stated that Slide 15 shows the roles of DOA and DRB for the
provi sion of enployee health care. The first role, she said, is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 26, 2017



paying the enployer contribution towards covering enployee
health care benefits. She added that not all State of Al aska
enpl oyees are covered by the sanme health insurance plan.
Dependi ng on the plan, enployees have access to benefits either
through the ASEA Health Trust or the Al askaCare Enployee Plan
"Al askaCare" nmanaged by DOA.

M5. RICCI referred to the colum on the right on Slide 15

detailing the Al askaCare Enpl oyee Pl an. It is a self-insured
pl an, which nmeans the State of Al aska pays the clains for the
expenses that are incurred. She added that DOA does not

actually nmanage the <clains or administer the benefits but
contracts out to several different third-party adm nistrators.
She said that Aetna Inc. " Aet na" is the third-party
adm nistrator for the nedical plan, and Mda Health "Mda" is
the third-party admnistrator for the dental plan. She went on
to say the AlaskaCare Enployee Plan covers about 16, 350
i ndi vi dual s, whi ch i ncl udes 6, 350 enpl oyees and 9, 800
dependent s. The remaining 200 people are those who are no
longer with the State of Alaska but accessing benefits through
Consol i dat ed Omi bus Budget Reform Act (COBRA). She stated that
the cost of Al askaCare to the State of Alaska is approxi mately
$137.5 mllion, which includes $7.5 mllion in supplenental
funding and $13.8 nmillion paid by enpl oyees.

4:30:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what was neant by "suppl enental
fundi ng. "

M5. RICCl responded that in FY 16, DOA received approximtely
$7.5 mllion in supplenental funding to be applied to the G oup
Health and Life Trust Fund, which pays benefits for the
Al askaCar e Enpl oyee Pl an.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if a certain anmount was budgeted,
then an additional $7.5 mllion was needed.

M5. RICCI referred to Slide 16 and answered that the enployee
health plan is experiencing a fiscal challenge. She nentioned
that the plan experienced sonme initial savings in 2014, when
Aetna becane the third-party admnistrator and had negoti ated
better discounts wth the providers. She added that the
reduction in cost didn't |ast. The cost has been increasing
since 2016, due to the factors listed on Slide 16. She said
there was a spike in utilization [of health care services] in
2015 following layoff notices, but the level of wutilization

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- January 26, 2017



never returned to the pre-spike level. She added there has been
a reduction of enpl oyees, necessitating higher enpl oyer
contributions to cover the decreased nunber of enployees. She
said, also, there has been an energence of a double digit
pharmacy growth, a rate of 14-19 percent, which has occurred
across the nation, as well. She said the health care cost grew
faster than DRB anticipated. She concluded that the conbi nation
of these factors has resulted in the plan expending nore on
claims than is being brought in as revenues. She said DRB uses
a reserve balance to make up the difference, but wusing the

reserve is not be sustainable going forward. She referred to
the right columm on Slide 16 and noted the four "levers" for
addr essi ng t he fiscal chal | enges: i ncrease enpl oyee

contribution; inplenment plan design changes; reduce the cost of
service; and increase enployer contributions.

4:34: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she understood why the spike occurred
but asked why the |l evel of utilization stayed high.

M5. RICCl specul ated that stress and uncertainty is contributing
to the sustained increase in utilization. The uncertainty, she
conjectured, is related to all of the changes - in positions, in
salaries, and in health insurance. She offered that people are
havi ng medi cal procedures done now instead of waiting a year or
nor e. She said DRB |ooked to see if high cost clainmants were
driving the spike but found, in general, it was overal
utilization of |ower |evel services. This supported the theory
of people seeking services and appointments that, in the past,
t hey woul d have del ayed.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if Ms. Ricci thought this trend was
related to enployees' <concern for increased deductibles and
ot her increases.

M5. RICCl answered yes, that added to it.
4:36: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH referred back to Slide 15 and restated the
i nformation: the enployer cost of health insurance is about
$265 mllion; of that, the Al askaCare portion is about $115
mllion, and the Union Health Trust portion is about $150
mllion. He nentioned the 16,350 |ives covered under Al askaCare
and asked how nmany enpl oyees are covered under the Union Health
Trust s. He expressed confusion over the nunber of enployees.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 26, 2017



He said he has heard the nunber to be 24,000, wth 2,500
enpl oyees laid off, but this year's nunber is only an 80-person
variation fromlast year.

MR. FI SHER responded that the 24,000 figure refers to all state
wor kers, including those in the |egislature, the adm nistration,
the courts, and the wuniversity. He stated there are about
11,000 enpl oyees, and 6,300 of them are covered under
Al askaCar e. He said that state enployees "skew old." In the
next five years a little over 20 percent of all state enpl oyees
will be eligible for retirenment. He cited that historically
about two-thirds of those eligible actually retire. He asserted
that the reduction achieved in the state work force has largely
been due to attrition; therefore, only 80 people have received
pi nk slips. He said, "The nobst inportant thing you can do with
your enployees is be transparent and honest with them"” He
offered that many of these enployees were told early on that
their positions would be elimnated so they could plan for it.
He said the 80 pink slips are msleading, as the work force has
decreased substantially.

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH asked about enployee participation for
Al askaCar e.

MR. FISHER referred to Slide 15 and stated that enployees
contribute about 10 percent of the health care premum He said

that there is a standard plan and an econony plan. He said
historically the econony plan had poorer benefits but did not
require enployee contribution. For enployees who wanted a

greater level of benefits, a contribution was required. He said
the $13 mllion, or 10 percent of the cost of Al askaCare,
represents the contributions under the standard plan. He said
that all collective bargaining agreenments entered into by the
current admnistration require sonme contribution from al
enpl oyees, for both the standard and the econony plan. He said
DOA is currently evaluating, internally and with its actuaries,
how to develop a nore systematic nmethod of determining and
calculating the enployee contribution. He attested that 20
percent of the cost of the premium is the target for enployee
contri bution.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH quoted $265 million to be the total cost of
health care and asked if the prem um paid by enployees, which is
now about $26 million, will be doubled to about $50 mllion.

MR. FISHER rem nded the conmittee that Al askaCare is managed by
DOA, and the Union Health Trusts are managed by the unions. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 26, 2017



added that each one of the Union Health Trusts has its own
st andar ds. Sonme of the Union Health Trusts already require
considerably nore than 20 percent enployee contribution. He
added that his coments specifically refer to Al askaCare.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if $265 mllion is "all-inclusive,"
that is, if it includes the enployee contribution.

MR RICC said, "The enployee contribution for Al askaCare is
i nclusive of that nunber.” She added that she would check on
t he enpl oyee contributions for the Union Health Trusts.

4:43:46 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKINS asked if DRB has perfornmed an anal ysis of
the costs of different medical procedures conducted in Al aska

conpared with the Lower 48, and what the relative savings could
be.

M5. RICCl clained DRB is currently wundertaking analysis to
identify opportunities, and it is consulting reports from other
organi zations, such as the Al aska Health Care Conmm ssion and the
M I 1limn studies. She asserted the analysis was part of their
evaluation of costs and benefits and wll help to identify
alternatives to inprove the nedical travel benefit.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKINS asked if DRB is consulting with Aetna and
doi ng i n-house analysis with in-house infornmation.

M5. RICCI said absolutely, analysis can be done through DRB's
data warehouse. She clainmed DRB staff is currently sorting
through data to determne the best value for changing the
nmedi cal travel benefit.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked if DRB will share its findings.

M5. RICCl responded absol utely.

CHAIR KREISS-TOWKINS asked if M. Ricci had a tineline for
sharing the conclusions fromthe anal ysis.

M5. RICCl said no, but offered it would be within the next
coupl e of nonths. She said DRB's goal is to have the new
medi cal travel benefit inplenmented in the next three to six
nont hs.

4:46: 15 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 26, 2017



M5. RICCI turned to Slide 17, titled "Health Care Authority
Study,"” and said Senate Bill 74, the Medicaid Reform Bill, which
passed in the 29th Alaska State Legislature, directed the
conmmi ssioner of admnistration to conduct a study evaluating the
feasibility of a health care authority. The study is due June
2017. She explained that since there is no standard definition
for "health care authority,"” there are a range of nodels across
the U S, from very sophisticated to very narrow. Washi ngt on
State and Oregon have very sophisticated authorities that manage
nost of their public enployees and Medicaid healthcare spending
in an integrated fashion. She nentioned other states having
authorities in name only, with just an office simlar to the
Ofice of Rate Review in the Al aska Departnment of Health and
Soci al Services (DHSS)

M5. RICCI went on to say DRB put out an RPF in July and awarded

a contract in August to PRM Consulting. The consulting firm
will evaluate the feasibility of a health care authority study,
in tw phases. She said the goal is to see if there are

opportunities to create savings through greater efficiencies.
PRM Consulting is looking at a wde range of entities receiving
state funding, either directly or indirectly, for health care
benefits, including all State of Al aska enpl oyees, Unions Health
Trust enployees, retirees, Medicaid recipients, school district
enpl oyees, enployees of political subdivisions, individuals, and

smal | group markets. She explained that phase one will evaluate
the opportunity for savings through a consolidated purchasing
strategy. That approach, she said, allows entities to retain

their autonony, plan design, and plan admnistration, while DRB
| ooks for opportunities for savings through |everaging vol une.
The second phase, she continued, evaluates opportunities for
savings through a coordinated plan adm nistration. She queried,
"I's there a way that we can better and nore efficiently provide
health care services across all these different entities?" She
added that the report is due in June, but DRB hopes to provide
information in advance of that date and anticipates the
conpl eti on of phase one in February.

4:49: 58 PM

MR. FISHER referred to Slide 20, titled "Recap of Last Year:
ASEA, LTC, SU, CEA," to discuss the three [collective
bar gai ni ng] negotiation principles. He addressed the first
principle by saying that cash and benefits need to be fair to
both the State of Al aska and the enpl oyees. He enphasized the
need to treat enployees fairly, notwithstanding the fiscal

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 26, 2017



challenges. He clained DOA is trying to balance the demands and
asserted that enployees are "giving nore" than they have in the
past. The current adm nistration has not negotiated any Cost of
Li vi ng Al | owance (CaLA) i ncreases; t here is i ncreased
contribution by enployees to the health benefit; contributions
to Union Health Trusts have renmamined "flat"; and enpl oyees have
been asked to give a furlough or furlough equival ent.

The second principle, he said, is efficiency. He said DOA has
been | ooking at bargaining agreenments to ensure the work rules

contribute to an efficient process. He nentioned that
bargai ning agreenents have evolved differently resulting in
multiple different state processes. He nentioned that DOA has

identified the work rules with the greatest inpact and is trying
to standardize the rules across bargaining units for nore
ef ficient managenent.

He went on to the third principle, which is to hold enployees
accountable and recognize and reward the best enployees. He
menti oned the creation of the Labor Managenment Conmttee to | ook
at performance reviews and develop a nore effective eval uation
process.

4:53:13 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TUCK confirmed his belief that |abor nanagenent
committees are useful tools to identify efficiencies, foster

t eamnwor k, and reduce grievances.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked how nmany different |abor agreenents
DOA manages and what the bargaining units are.

MR. FISHER responded that there are 11 different bargaining

agreenents. The unions are: ASEA; Labor, Trades, and Crafts
(LTO); Supervi sors Uni on (SV); Confi denti al Enpl oyees
Associ ation (CEA); Marine Engineers Beneficial Association
( MEBA) ; | nl andboat nen' s Uni on of t he Pacific (1BU);
I nternational Organization of Msters, Mites and Pilots (MV&P)

Al aska  Vocati onal Techni cal Cent er Teachers' Associ ation

(AVTECTA); Alaska Correctional Oficers Association (ACQA);
Public Safety Enployees Association (PSEA); and Teacher
Educati on Association of M. Edgecunbe (TEAME)

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if the union agreenents have staged
expiration dates and if holidays are coordi nated between unions.
He also asked if all of the agreenents include [salary] step
i ncreases.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 26, 2017



MR. FISHER offered that each bargaining agreenent is a three-
year agreenent; therefore, each year about one-third of them are

negoti at ed. He said DOA is attenpting to better standardize
wor k rul es. He added that historically nmerit step increases
were given in addition to the COLA;, nerit increases reflect
increase in skill and proficiency of the enployee, and COLA
addresses cost of living differences. He expressed his belief
that the rate of growmh of state salaries is too steep. He

offered that doesn' t mean  enpl oyees as a whole are
overconpensated, since starting salaries tend to be "below
mar ket . " He added that the salaries of sonme of the enployee
groups, particularly the professionals and the highly skilled,
are |l ess than market, according to DOA anal ysis.

4:58: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH nentioned the recent discussion in the
House Labor and Commerce St andi ng Conmittee regar di ng
contracting out positions within DOT&PF and asked if salary
studi es are perforned.

MR. FISHER, in response to Representative Birch, clarified that
whenever DOA outsources, it does a feasibility study, not a
salary study, to determne the cost of performng a task
internally versus externally.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK used the exanple of becom ng a journeynman
electrician to explain that enployees, who are not fully
qualified when they enter into a position, start out below
mar ket val ue. He added that the reason step increases were
negotiated was to increase wages and benefits as skills and
abilities increase.

5:00: 35 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 5:00
p. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- January 26, 2017



